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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Consolidated Comolidated
Nate Fot) HNG
$'000 $'000
Financing revenue and similar revenue 3 1,054, 580 L0G6,631
Financing expense and similar charges 3 |, a0 (67 O0d)
Net financing revenue 330,571 394,537
Other income 4 23,262 33,599
Net aperating income 153,833 428136
impatrmant of financing assets 3 (349, 08} [EXEREY
Employes benafils expense {53,811 84, 160}
Depreciation, amortisation and write-off 5 fam 382 (23,139)
IT and communication expenss (12,337 {10,335]
Sales and marketing expanse [9.237) [,054]
Dorupancy expense [6, T06) [6,459)
Other expenses (18,17 {17,532}
Share of net profits of associates accounted for uting
the equity method FL1 B,203 7,610
Profit before income Lax 154,212 27042
liscormia bt fxpanis & {6, 754) |67.968)
Prafit attributable to owners of the parent 107,458 159,004
Other comprohensive income
ftems that may be clossifed to profi or kess
Exchange differences on translation of forelgn
operations 15 916 15,591}
Total comprehensive income
attributalyle to the owners of the parent 108,374 153,483

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Consolidated Consolidated
2m7 .l
$'000 $'000

Assels MNote

Cash and cash equivalents i 1,268,572 1,199,106

Loans and receivables Ha 13,857,261 12,695,310

Motor vehides under operaling leass 8b 1,175,133 1,135,139

Derivative financlal instruments 17 346,043 411,074

investments accounted for using the equity method L 64,439 6147

Intangible assels 27 33,575 A, 06

Property, plant and equipment 26 B.A32 10,187

Deferred tax assets 28 17914 10,067

Cther assets 1 15,016 53,383
Total Assets 16,806,845 15,616,927
LiabHities

Duse to banks and other financial institutions 10 5,710,604 5,261,216

Bonds and commercial paper 11 9,322,669 641,485

Devrivative finandal instruments 17 192,377 258,235

Other liabilities 24 340,418 312,409
Total Liabilities 15,572,068 14,483,345
Met Assets 1,234,777 1,133,582
Equity

Contributed equity 14 120,000 120,000

RPSErvEsS 15 3,425 2.509

Retained sarnings 16 1,111,352 !I,l.'lla a73
Total Equity 1,234,777 1,133,582

The abowve consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ABN 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Attrlbutable to Gwners of Toyota Finance Australia Lmited

Contributed Ratained
Equity Resenes Earnings  Total Equity
£ o0 4'000 5’000 $'000
Balarge at 1 April 2016 120,000 2,509 1,011,073 1,133,582
Profit for the year - - 107,458 107,458
Other comprehensive inceme § G516 # 916
Total comprehensive income # 916 107,458 108,374
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:

Dhvidend paid 6 - - (717 {7,179}
Ralance at 31 Masch 2007 120,000 3,425 1,111,352 1,234,777
Balance at 1 April 2005 140,000 8,100 B5T, 234 985,334
Profit for the year ] - 155,074 159,074
Other comprehensive income . 15.591) - |5.591)
Total comprehensive income » {3.390) 153,074 153,483
Transaciions with ownars in their
capacity as owners:

Dividend paid 16 ¢ . |5,235} [5,235)
Balance at 31 March 2016 120,000 2,509 LO011,073 1,133,582

The above consolidated stabement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.
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TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ABM 48 002 435 181

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash outtlow from lending and othaer
operating activities
Interest rectivid
Kental income recenvaed
RED refund
Interest paid
Income tawes paid
Mt cash outflow from operating activities

Cergh flovws from investing octivities
Paymants for intangible assets
Payments for property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Dividends received from associate

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cazh flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of bormewings
Dividends paid 1o parent

Met cash inflow from financing adivities

Net incrogse/[decrease) in cash & cash aquivalents
Cash & cath equivalants at beginning of period

Cash & cath equivalents at end of period

15
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Consolidated Consolidated
2047 016
000 000
{1.787.198) {849, 164}
B45.501 32,0550
143,157 345,477
3,760 3,318
| 395,887} | 807, 3a8)
{18,610 [64,515)
[1,025,117) 118 601)
[ 3057 [¥8,08%)
(7,113} 17,455)
A4.560 5,7
7179 5,238
[15.431) [14,553)
14,776,435 10,925,177
[13,659,242) | 10, B0, a5 T)
(#1749 15,235}
1,110,014 59.9%)
69,466 |73, 64}
1,199,106 1,272,770
1,268,572 1,199,106

The above cansalidated statemoent of cash fows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Basis of Preparation

This section describes the company's significant accounting policies that refate to the financial statements and
notes of the accounts, If an accounting policy relates 1o a particular note, the applicable policy ks contained
within the relevant note. This section alse shows new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations
and whether they are effective in the current fiscal year or later years.

1. Corporate information

Thasa financial statements cover the consolidated finandal statements of the consoiidated entity comprising
Toyota Finance Australia Limited, a5 chief entity, and the entities it controlied at the end, or during the
financial year.

Toyota Finance Australia Limited |'the company’) ks a company limited by shares, incorporated and damiciled
im Australia. its registered office and principal place of business k:

Toyota Finance Austrakia Limited
Level 8, 207 Pacific Highway
5T. LEONARDS, NSW, 2065

A description af the nature of the entitys principal activities i3 included in the directors’ report on page 2,
which Is not part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 01 June 2017, The company has the
pawer 1o amend and reissue the financial statements,

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the proparation of the financial statemants are sot out below,
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the consalidated entity consisting of Toyota Firance Australia Limited and Its subsidiaries.

{a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australlan Accounting
standards and Interpretations isued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act
2004, Toyota Finance Australia Umited |5 a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial
statemaents,

Camplionce with IFRS

The eensalidated Anancial statements of Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its contrelled entities alse
comply with Intemational Financlal Reparting Standards (IFAS) as Bsued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB),

Historicol cost converntion

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and llabilities at fair value through prafit or loss (desvatives).

{b) Principtes of consolidation

{1 Subsicizries

The consolidated financial statements incofporate the assets and llabilities of all subsidiaries of Toyota Finance
Australia Limited [“company” or “parent entity®] as at 31 March 2017 and the results of all subsidiaries for the

10
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Basis of Preparation (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{b) Principles of consolidation (continued)
i) Subsidiaries fcontinued)

year then ended, Toyota Fimance Australia Limited and its controlled entities together are referred to in the
financial statements as the consolidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all entities (inchuding structured enlities) over which the company has contral. The company
controls an entity when the company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retwrns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity,
Thiey are deconsalidated from the date that the control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting Is used to account for business combinations by the company.

Intercompany trandactions, balances and unrealised gains on bransactions between consolidated entities are
eliminated. Unfealised |osses are alo eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the parent entity.

fii} Associates

Associates are all entities over which the company entity has significant influence but not contral, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in assoclates are
accounted for in the consolidated finandial statements using the equity method of sccounting, afiter initially
being recagnised o1 cost.

The company's share of its assoclates’ post-acquisition profits or losses |s recognised in profit or foss, and its
share of post-acguisition movements in reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amoaunt of the imvestment. Dividends receivable
fram assoclates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the carrying
amaunt of the investment.

When the company's share af lastes in an associate equals ar exceeds its interest in the associate, incuding
any other unsecured lang-term recetvables, the consodidated entity does not recognice further losses, unbess it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of its associate,

Unrealised gains on transactions betweean the cormpany and its associates are eliminated to the exteat aof the
consolidated entity’s infercst in assodiates. Unrealised losses ane also eliminated wnless the transaction

pravides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting pelides of asseciates have been
changed where necessary to ensure coensistency with the policies adeopted by the consolidated entity.

(€} Foreign currency translation

(i} Functionol ond presentotion currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the consolidated entithes are measured using the
currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the entity operates [the functional currency’}, The

consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the company’s functional and
presentation currency.

1
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Basis of Preparation (continued)

2. summary of significant accounting palicies [continued)
(e} Forelgn currency translation (continued)

(i} Functional end presentation carrency (oontinwed)

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the nat investment In the foreign
entity from functional to presentation cutrency is recognlsed in other comprehenchwe income,

i) Tronsoctions and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denaminated in foreign currencies are recognised in peofit or loss.

Forelgn exchanpe gaing and losses that relates to barrowings are presented in the income statement, within
financing expense and similar charges. All aother foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
incame statement on a nat basis within ather incame or other expensas.

{d] Rounding of amounts

This company i of a kind referred to in ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016/191 relating to the “rounding off™ of
amounts in the financisl statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in
accordance with the Instrument 1o the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

[8) Mew or revised accounting standards and Interpretation not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the
31 March 2017 financial vear and have not been early adopbed by the company.

The AASS 9 Financial Instruments - The new standard simpBfies the model for classifying and recognising
financial instruments and allgns hedge accounting more closely with commaon risk management practices.
Changes in awn credit risk in respect of liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss shall now be
presented within other comprehensive income (OCH),

AASE 95 nevw impalrment model is a move away from AASS 139°5 incurred credit loss approach to an expected
credit loss model, Earlier recognition of impairment loases is likely to result and for entities with significant
lending activities, an cverhaul of related systems and processes will be needed,

The company i assessing the impact on its financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value
through the profit or loss. The new hedging rules allow easier applieation of hedge aceounting and the new
standard requites expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation. The new impairment
medel is an expected credit loss {ECL) meadel, which may result in the earfier recognition of credit fosses.

Thee new standard s required for mandatory application for the financial year commencing 1 April 2018, but is
available for early adeption, The company has decided not to early adopt AASE 9.

The major impact of the initial application of the new standard is on impairment. The company is in the
precess af resullging its impalrment models and is yet (o assess its linancial impact. 11 does not expect to have
significant impact on hedge accounting and classification and measurement aspects of the standard.

12
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Basis of Preparation (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

{2} Mew er revised accounting standards and Interpretation not yet adopted [continued)

The AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - This standard replaces AASE 118, which covers
contracts for goods and services, and AASE 111, whith covers construction contracts,

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or senace
transfers to a customer = so the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards.

The new standard i required for mandatory application for the financial year commencing 1 April 2018,

The company |s reviewing and will determine the tmpact of this new standard in the coming periods.

The AASE 16 Leases - AASE 16 will primarily affect the accounting by lessee and will result in the recognition of
almost all leases on the balance sheet, The standard removes the current distinction between operating and
financing leases and requires recognition of an asset [the right to use the leased item) and a financial llability
to pay rentals for almost all lease contracts. The accounting by lessars, however, will not significantly change.
The new standard 13 requised for mandatory application for the financial year commencing 1 April 2019, This

revised standard Is deemed to have minimal impact on the financial statements of the company. The company
is reviewing and will determine the full impact in the coming periods,

13
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Results for the Year

This section provides further Infarmation about individual ling ftems in the profit and loss statement,
Including

*  breakdown of financing revenue and expense

other income

depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense

Income tax expense

segment results
relevant accounting policies

- & & & &

3. Financing revenue and expense

Consolldated Consalidated

Farri o th 1]

$'o00 §'000
Fimonoimg revene ond similor revemue
Enderast révenus Bag9.1 B53, 260
Rental income on motor vehicles under oparating lease 343,157 345,422
Fe income 0,173 BR.4A71
Foe expense [2F7,561) [221,472)
Total financing revenue and similar revenue 1,054,960 1060611
Finandiing expense and similar charges
Interest Bxpense 363,042 371,396
Mt [gain)floss on transdation of fersign currency dobt (.562) [ 206, 42H)
Fair valus u,il n}/boss on derivative financial instruments ot lair gz
through profit ar loss 105,024 214,964
Transaction costs 15,852 15,065
Deprecistion expenss on assets under operating lease 7,951 77,143
Total financing expense and similar charges. 14,809 BI04

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured ab the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of direct sales costs and taxes,

The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be rellably measured, it is
probable that future economic benafits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been mel. Revenue |5
recognised for the major business activities as follows:

{a) Term Loans and Term Purchase
Interest income arising from term loans and term purchase are recognised over the period of the contract

using the effective interest rate method. Income derived from term loans and term purchase is included in
“intereil revenua”.

14

117/254



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Results for the Year (continued)

3. Financing revenue and expense (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

{b) Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessor
{i} Fingnee Leases

Interest income derived from finance leases Is recognised over the period of the contract using the effective
interest rate method. Income derived from finance leases is included in “nbenest revenue”.

{ll) Cperating Legses

Lease rentals receivable on aperating leases are recognised on a systematic basis over the effective lease term.
Incame derived from operating leases is included in “rental income on motor vehicle under operating lease®,
Operating leases had an average term of 42 months in the current period {2016: 40 months).

[g} Fee and commission income and expensa

Fee income and expense are an integral past to the effective interest rate of the flinancial assets or liabilities
and are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Qther fee and commission income induding payment methed fee, service maintenance fee and insurance
distribution fee are recognised as the related services are performed.

Other fee and commission expense relate to transaction and service fees such as service maintenance
expenses and are recognised as expense in the period the services are received.

4. Other income

Consolidated Consolldated

2017 HiG

$'000 $'000
Nt gain on disposal of leased and lixed assets 9,580 8,037
Commission and other Income 13,682 25,542
73,262 31,559

15
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Results for the Year [continued)

5. Depreciation, amortisation and write-off

Consolidated Consolidated
mr .11 L]
4°000 5'000
Profit before income tax inclhedes the following specific expenses:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Leasahold Improvements 954 1,675
Plant and equipmeant 1181 1,249
Motor vahicles 1,647 1,766
Tatal depraciation 3,7mH2 4090
Amaortisation and write-off
Computer software development 15,749 19,049
Computer software write-off 7,831 :
Total amortisation and write-of 23,600 19,049
Total depreciation, amortisation and write-off 27,342 23,139

Assets that are subject 1o depreciation, amortisation and write-off are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable ameount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to resell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
eash inflaws which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other asset groups {cash generating units).

Refer to Mote 26 Property, Plant and Equipment & Nate 27 - Intangible assets for further information on
depreciation and amortisation,

16
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Results for the Year (continued)
6. Income tax expense

The income tax expense or revenue for the period &s the tax payable or recelvable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicabvle income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and (o unused tax losses,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and wnused tax losses only If it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be avallable to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Défarred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of imvestments in controlled entities where the parent entity Is able to control the tming of the
reversal of the temporary differences and It Is probable that the differences will not reverse in the loresecable
future.

Consolidated Consolidated

L7 2016
$'000 §'000
a) Current tax 55,17 A8, 465
Deferred tax (7,507 18,190
Under/{Over] provision in prior year [518) 1,313
Incoma tax experde attributatile to continuing cperations 5,754 67,968
Deferrad income tax expense induded in income tax
EXpenIe comprises:
(Increase)/Decrease in deferred tax assets {7,991) ' 12,707
Ictease/|Decrease) in deferred lax labilities 84 5,482
(7.907) 18,189
b} Mumerical reconciliation of Income tax expense Lo prima
facie tax payable:
Profit from continuing eperations before incomae tax expense 154,212 217,043
Prima facie tax payable & 30% A, 263 64,113
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:
Share of net profit of associate [2.461) {2,283}
Sundry items 3470 BLS
a7.172 66,655
[Cverh/Under provision in prior years |S18) 1,313
income tax expense atiributable to continuing operations a6, 754 67,068
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Results for the Year [continued)

6. Income tax expense (continued)

Daferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and labilties and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxatlon authorlty, Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
1o seftle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setthe the fiability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profs or loss, except bo the extent that it relates 1o ilems recognised
i other comprehensive income of directly in equity. In this casa, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income of directly in eguity, respectively,

Tax consodidation legistation

The company and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consalidation
fegistation from 1 April 2003 in assoclation with other Australian incorporated entities with common
ownership.

On adoption of the Income tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the income tax consolidated group
entered inta an income tax sharing agreement which, in the opinien of the directors, [imits the joint and
several liability for income tax of the consolidated entity in the case of a default by the head entity, Toyota
Motor Corporation Australla Limited.

A% § consequence, the company |5 no lenger subject to ncome tax and does not recognise any current tax
balances in its own financial statements unless the Head Entity (Toyveta Motor Corporation Australia Limited) is
in default of its obligations, ar a default is probable, under the tax consolidation legislation, o the Lax amounts
relate to taxable income incurred preor to the implementation of the tax consolidation regime.

The consolidated entity has also entered ato an income tax lunding agresment under which the consolidated
entity fully compensates the head entity for any current income tax payable assumed and s compensated by
the head entity for any current income tax receivable. The funding amounts are determined by reference to
the amounts recognised n the consclidated entity™s financial statements.

The amounts receivable/payable under the income tax funding agreement is due upon receipt of the funding
advice from the head entity, which i lssued a3 soon as practicable after the end of each financial year. The
head entity may also reguire payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay income
tax instalments,

Deferred tax batances are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with UIG 1052 Tax
Consalidation Accounting. Amounts receivable ar payable under a tax funding agreement with the Head Entity
are recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as taw-related amounts
receivable and payable.

Research and development [RED) tax offset

The consolidated entity has claimed tax offsets related to AED expenses under the RED government incentive
program, The tax benefit from R&D expenses is recognised as a reduction in the related intangible asset or
operating expenses, depending on the nature of the oxpanditure.

ARD tax incentives reccived this fiscal year were for AD expenses incurred in the fiscal year 2016, This
resulted in a decrease of 53.0 million (2016: $1.9 million} in total assets and a decrease in net profit after tax of

1.1 million (consisting of a decrease in general expenses of $0.8 million (2016: 51.4 million), offset by an
increase in income tax expense of 51.9 million,

18
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Results for the Year [continued)

7. Segment results
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Management has determined the operating segments based on reports reviewed by the board of directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. It categorises the operations of the business Into two main business
streams = retail and fleet. Retail segment is comprised of loans and leases to personal and commercial
customers including whelesale finance censisting of loans and ballment facilities to mator vehide dealerships.
Flest segment is comprised of loans and leases to small business and fleet customers consisting of medium to
large commercial clients and government badies. The Company’s business segments operate in Australia.

Revenss

Fimamoe margin
Ursilliogated Ifems;
Falrwalwe floss] fgain

Treasany Operation income|coTt)

It mat [ nlefadt

Other unallgated reverun tems

Totsl wnallocated Hems
Total revenss

Eesult
Sagmant result
Unallocated ibems :

Shkare of net prolt of equity

acmounted investmels
Fair value [ioss)fgaim

Giher ynalocated net income

{oupenia)
Tatal unalfocated itemy
Profit belere Income tax
Income tax Expanse

Profit attributable to cwen of 1he

parent

Mt prafnt srved ab after charging

tha lollowing Aems:

Impaitment of liranding a55ets
Depretiation mobor wefhicle under

opetating lesie

Doprac atéon, amortication and

wtiteofl
OEher nen-tath expendes

Retail Fleet Consolideted
mr Hilk T M1E wr g
5000 000 $'000 ] £o00 §oon

126,130 08,754 55,054 53,506 6L, 8 260,360
[BRASL 5159

3,00 3,067

11,863 50

{1,880 1,431

49,187 1MA77

masn AT

La,07 LERAE L0017 3,504 132,085 \77. 043
8,203 T80

|37, bets3) 19
D -

ETA 1] 43,999

154,213 prafe

(44, 7545 67, 96]

107,458 155,004

41,280 R 10EM AT 1,566 51513
1,753 1143 73,851 T4

LB B 113y 8,546 13,00 b L 21178
63,75 3431 i 119 1,255 5 add
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Results for the Year [continued)

7. Segment results (continued)

Retail Fleat Consolidated
wm7 W6 7 b f.i 1) 216
{'000 $'000 00 §'000 400 $'000
Assets
Sogment issets| Net of provisions] 1609k 1L509.745 A2300 1339363 15,032,354 13,045,714
Equity accounted isvestments 439 62499
Unallocated assets
Cash and cash pquivalents La6E5T2 1,155,106
Derivalrve financisl imstnaments 46,043 411,074
Other unallocated assets 35357 45
Totsd wadlocated items 1,710,002 1,704,714
Total assety 16,300,845 15,616,927

Operating Segments are reported In a manner cansistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker who Is responsible for allecating resources and
assessing performance of the aperating segments has been identified as the board of directors,
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Lending

This section focuses on the lending assets of the consolidated entity. Further information |s provided on the
loans and receivables, and impairment relating to these financing assets,

B. Financing assets

Consolidated Consolidated
7 216
$'000 $'000
A Loans and receivables
Bailment stack 2,087.247 1,785,110
Term loans 11,911,555 10,744,345
Term purchase 630,593 676,507
Finance leases 606,240 614,968
Gross loans and recefvables 15,226,235 13,024,930
Uneamid income [L.212,482) L1165, %40
Nt loans and fscelvables [nit of unsarmed ncome) 14,013,753 12,E58 990
Provision For impainmant of loans and recedvables [156,4%2) (161,614
Met loais and receivalsles 13,857,261 12,695,376
Muiturity analysis [net of unearned income)
Loans and recenables maturing within 12 months 5,480,620 5,195,437
Loans and receivables maturing beyond 13 months 5,533,133 7,663,553
14,013,753 12,858,590

Concentration of exposures
The majority of the consolidated entity’s loans and receivables are provided to finance the purchase of motor
wehickes or motor dealership assets,

Consolidated Consalidated
o MG
$'o00 $'ooo
b. Botor vehicles under operating lease

AL eost 1,910,191 1,826,805
Provision for impairment loss (33433 130, 331
Aocumulated depreciation | ol.02%) | 641, 35}
Total mobor vehbcles under operating lease 1,175,133 1,135,131

Future minimum lease recelpts under non-cancellable operating leases

Within 1 year 249,566 150,210
Over 1 year but within 5 years 314,257 9L577
Over 5 years 6,484 4,956
570,327 547,743
Movements in cost, accumulated depreciation and resenes
Balance at the beginning of perod, net of residual valus 1135139 1,086,342
Additions 539,523
Disposals 10,455
Depreciation expense ] (277143
Impairment loss | 4. 0528 {3,088}
Balanicoe al end of period, nel af residual value 1,175,133 1,136,139
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Lending (continued)
8. Financing assets (continued)

Recognition and de-recognition

Purchases and sales of financing assets are recognised on settlement date - the date on which the
comsolidated entity setties the purchase or sale of the asset. Financing assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value thiough profit or toss. Finandial
sasets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the consolidated entity has transferred substantially all the risks and fewards of
ownership,

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective
Interast method calewlation includes the contractual terms of the loan, together with all fees and transaction
costs, Retall and wholesale finance recefhvabiles form part of the loans and receivables in the balance sheet.

Loans with renegotiated terms are accounted for in the same manner taking account of any change to the
terms of the loan.

All loans and receivables are subject to continucus management roview, to assess whether there is any
abjective evidence that the loan is impaired,

Unearned Income is brought to account aver the life of the contracts on an effective interest method,
The consolidated entity classifies its financing assets into the following categories:

{i} Baltment stock

The consalidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements to moter dealers under which
vehicles are ownied by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers’ premises as bailment stock, There is no
unearned income on bailment stock.

whilst the legal form of the transactions is that the vehicles are owned by the condolidated entity, the
substance of the transactions ks that of secured loans to the dealers. Accordingly, the balances are disclosed as
part of ‘leans and receivables’ in the statement of financial position.

(i} Term Loans

Torrn loan it 2 retadl financing agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risk
and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance income is the portion
of charges written into finance racenable agreements which will be earned in the future.

(i¥i] Leased assats where the consolidated entity is the lessor

Term Purchase

Term purchase is a lease agreement in which the terms of the agreement swbstantially transfer the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the customer. Unearned finance income is the portion of
charges written into term purchase receivable agreements which will be earned in the future,

Finance Legse

Finance lease ks a lease agreement in which the terms of the agreement substantially transfer the risks and
researds incidental to awnership of an asset from the lessor (o the lessee. Unearned finance income is the
portion of charges written into finance recetvable agreements which will be earmed in the future.

Operating Lease
Maotor vehicles under operating leases are included in Financing Astets, These are leases in which the terms of

the lease agreament do not substantially transfer the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to
thi lesses.
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Operating Lease {continued)

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Maotor vehicles under operating bease i inclusive of carrying value of vehicles which ceased to be rented and
are held for sale amounting to 515.1 million as at 31 March 2017 {2016: $17.6 milllen).

Assets held under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease to Iis
estimated residual value, Depreciation expense is included within financing expense and similar charge.

Concentration of exposures

The majority of the consolidated entity's loans and recelvables are previded to linance the purchase or lease of

mator wehicles or motor dealership assais,

Unearned income is comprised of the following balances:

Consolidated Consalidated
W17 016
$'000 £'000
Het unamartised deferred revenue and 2Xpenses (291,252} | 2'FH. D0}
Unearned finance income on finance leases 38,628 42,800
Uniearnad finance income on tarm loans 1,465,106 1,401,140
Tatal uneamed income 1,212,482 1,165,940
Securitisation

Loans and receivables include a postion of the consolidated entity’s term loans and term purchase under
securitisation within special purpose entities. The terms of the transfer of these loans do not meet the criteria

for de-recognition under AASE 139 and are therefore recognised en the conselidated entity’s statement of
financial position, AASE 10 defines conbrol when an investor is exposed or has rights, to variable returns from
its Involvernent with the investee and has the abifity to affect those returns through s power over the
imvesiee. The parent enlily bears control over the special purpose wehicles requiring consolidation in the

financial statements.

As at the end of the reporting perlod, the carndng amount of transferred assets held by the spedial purposs

enlities under securitisation was 53,998.2 million (2016 53.061.9 million).
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177,100
[LERGS)
10,283

163,615

271,275
3,086

30,361

[15.855)
73,358

Lending (continued)
9. Impairment
Consofidated
017
£'000
. Provision for impairment of loans and receivablas
Opening balance 163,615
Bad debts written off [61.421)
Increase in Impabiment bods plovidbksn 54,198
Clasing balanco 156,402
b. Prowislan for impairment of motor vehicles under oparsting lease
Opening balance 30,361
Inereasef{decreasa) In Impalrment loss pravision 3072
Clasing balance 33,4353
. Impalrment loss
Recovery of bad debits written off {17.804)
ncrease In mpairment loss provision 57370
Total impairment loss 39,566

57,513

Sipnificant accaunting estimate ond Judgement

The consolidated entity applies significant estimates and assumptions to make reasonable judgerments on
carrying amounts of financing assets. One area that involves a high level of judgements or complexity of
estimates and assumptions is impairment of loans and recelvables and motor vehicles under operating lease,

Collectability of finanging assets is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Financing assets which are known to be
uncoliactible are written off, A provision for impairment of financing adsets is established when there is
ohjective evidence that the consolidatied entity éxpects not to be able to collect all amounts due according to
the ariginal terms of the contract. The amount of the provision Is the difference between the assat's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (exduding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate

computed at initial recognition). Thie amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Funding

In this section, the focus is on debt funding of the consolidated entity. Further information Is provided on
debt issuance and credit facilities available to manage liquidity risk.

10. Due to banks and other financial institutions

Consolidated Consolidated

2017 2016
£'000 $'000
Banks and other financlal institutions 5.318.037 4,896,753
Affiliated entity 392 567 364,463
Total banks and financial institution borrowings 5,710,604 5.261,216
Maturity anabysis
Current
Banks and other financial institutions IR FERIE] 1,749,610
Affiliated entity 392,567 364,463
Total Current 2,265,581 2,614,133
MNon-current
Barks and other finandal Institutions 3,445,003 2,647,083
Total Mon-current 3,845023 2,847 083
Total banks and financial institution borrowings 5,710,604 5,261,216

Includied in the “Due to banks and other financial institutions” Is securitised debt of 53,146,2 million as at 31
March 2017 (2016: $2,395.0 million) representing the value of term loans heid by the external parties in the
special purpose entities. The special purpose entities issued interest-bearing notes to the third parties
amaunting to $3,146.2 milion as at 31 March 2017 (2016: $2,395.0 million). TFA helds the balance of the
spedal purpose entities of $852 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016 $666.7 million). 53,998.2 million loans and
recelvables are pledged as collateral for the senlor notes under securitisation as at 31 March 2017 [2016:
$3,061.9 million},

The interest payable on the secured notes as at 31 March 2017 amounted to 52.3 millkon (2016: $2.0 million)
and is included in "Acorued Interest Payable®.
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Funding (continued)

11. Bonds and commercial paper
Comsolldated Consolidated

F.U ) Ma

£'000 4000
Domestic commercial paper 1,007,307 1,270,211
Damastic medium term nete 555,474 849,099
Euro commearcial paper 1,725,807 B11,740
Eura medium term note 5,590,081 5,710,435
Total bonds and commercial papers 9,322,669 B,641,485
Maturity analysis
Current bonds and commercial papers 4,817,684 3,818,850
Mon-current bonds and commercial papers 4,504,985 4,822,595

9,322,650 8,641,485

Bonds and commercial paper are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Bonds and
commercial paper are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
trancaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the peried of the
bands or commercial paper using the effective interest method.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial liability are incuded in
the initial recognition of the financial instruments.

Holders of any outstanding bonds, debentures, notes and other investment securities and commercial papers
summarised in the tables above have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by Japanese law, one
between Toyota Moter Corporation and Toyota Financial Services Corporation dated 14 July 2000, and the
ather between Toyota Financial Services Corporation and the company dated 7 August 2000,

12. Securitisation and transferred assets

In the normal course of business, the consolidated entity enters into transactions by which it transfers financial
aisets 1o Special Purpose Entities (SPEs), These transfers do not give rise to de-recognition of those financial
assets for the consolidated entity.

Securitisatian

Term loans securitised under the company’s securitisation programs are equitably assigned to bankruptcy
remate SPEs. The consolidated entity is entithed 1o any residual income of the securitisation program after all
payments due to inveitars have been met. In addition, where derivatives are transacted between the SPE and
the parent, such thal the parent retains exposure to the variability in cash flows fram the transferred term
Iaans, the Ipans will continue to be recognised on the parent’s balance sheet. The investors have full recourse
anly to the term Inans segregated Into the SPES,
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Funding (continued)

12. Securitisation and transferred assets (Continued)

Consolidated Consolidated
2017 016
$'000 $'000
Carrying amount of transferred assets 3,998,246 3,061,919
Carrying amaount of associated liabilities 3,146,237 2,395,227
Met position for carrying amount 852,009 666,692
Falr value of transferred assets 4,389,408 3,335,743
Fair value of associated liabilities 3,167,229 2,403,531
Met position for fair value amount 1,722,119 931,812
13, Credit facilities
Consolidated Consolidated
2017 26
5000 $'000

Amount available;

Bonds, commercial papers and term loans 17,419,905 14,583,022
Manay market 587,500 447,500
Bank overdraft 4,000 4,000
Securitisation

-5entor Note 4,080,000 3,830,000
-Mezzanine Note 1,120,000 1,070,000
Amount utilised:

Bonds, commercial papers and term loans 11,936,489 11,558, 756
Monoy market - .
Bank overdraft - -
Securitisation

-senlor Mote 3,146,237 2,395,227
-Mezzanine Note B52,009 666,592
Amount nat utilised:

Bonds, commercial papars and term loans 5,483,415 13,024, 766
Money market 587,500 487,500
Bank overdraft 4,000 4,000
securitisation

-Senior Mote 933,763 1,424,773
-Mezzanine Note 267,991 403,308

Medium term note and commerclal paper programs

Medbkum term notes and commercial paper programs allow the company (o issue medium term notes and
commercial paper in either Australian of overseas markels up to a total of 512.2 hillian (20162 519.7 hillion).
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Funding (continuad)
13, Credit facilities [continued)
Medlum term note and commerclal paper programs {continued)

In the current financial year Toyota Financlal Services Corporation allocated 52.0 billion BMTH facility to TFA
[2016: 510.0 hillion). Subject ta mesting canditions prescribed (n the program documentation, the company
can Bsue commercial paper and medium term aotes to purchasers at any time.

Credit support agresment

Holders of debt securities lssued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements
governed by Japanese law, one between Toyota Metor Corperation ("TMC] and Toyota Financial Services
Corporatien [“TFSC®] dated 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the Company dated 7 August 2000
[bogather, the “Cradit Support Agreements”).

Securities with respect to which a Trustee is appainted

The Trustee, Union Bank of California MLA., will have the right to claim in favour of the holders of such
securities directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective obligations under the Credit Suppart
Agreements by making a written claim fogether with a declaration to the effect that such holders will have
recourse to the rights given under the Credit Support Agreements. |f TFSC and/for TMC recetve such a clalm
from the Trustes, TFSC andfor TMC shall indemnify, without further action or formality, the holders against
any loss or damage resulting from the failure of TFSC andfor TMC to perorm any of their respective
abligations under the Credit Support Agreements. The Trustee may then enforce the indemnity directly against
TFSC and/ar TMC in favour of such holders, If the Trustee, having become bound to proceed directly against
TFSC ard/far TMC, falls to do so within a reasonable peried thereafter to protect the intarests of the holders of
such securities, and sueh failure shall be continuing, the holders of such securities may themsalves take the
actions mentioned above,

Securities with respect to which o Trustee is not oppointed

Holders of such securities will have the right to claim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform thelr respective
abligations under the Credit Support Agreements by making a written claim together with a declaration to the
effect that the hoelder will have recourse to rights given under the Credit Support Agreements. If TFSC and/or
THAC recaive such a claim from any holder of such securities, TFSC and/or TMC shall indemnify, without any
further action or formality, the holder against any loss of damage resulting from the fallure of TFSC and/for
THAC to perform any of their respective obligations under the Cradit SUppor Agreements. The holder of such
securities who made the caim may then enforce the indemnity directy against TFSC and/for TMC,

in consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into
betwean TFSC and the company as at 30 March 2001, The Credit Support Fee Agreement provides that the
company will pay to TFSC a fee equivalent to o percentage of the weighted average outitanding amount of the
company’s medium term notes and commercial paper that have the benefit of the Credit Support Agreements.

The directors are not aware of any instances of @ written clalm and declaration under the terms of the Credit
Support Agreements, in connection with the company's outstanding medium tesrm notes and commercial
paper.
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Funding (continued)
13. Credit facilities (continued)
Money market facilities

The company has access 1o $0.49 billion of uncommitted and 50.1 billion of committed money market facilities
a5 at 31 March 2007 (2016: 50.49 billion uncommitted and Snil billkon committed) respectively provided by
warious financial institutions. The company also has access to a Master Credit Facility as disclosed below.

Master credit facility (MCF)

364 Doy Credit Agreement, Three Year Credit Agreement and Five Year Credit Agreement

The MCF between TFA and other Toyota affiliates was rencgotiated in Movember 2016 where a US55.0 billian
364-day syndicated bank credit facility, a US55.0 billion three year syndicated bank credit faglity and a US55.0
billizn five year syndicated bank credit facility, expiring in November 3017, 2019, and 2021, respectively, were
renewed,

The ability to make drawdowns is subject to covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature,
including negative pledge provisions, cross-default provisions and limitations on certain consolidations,
mergers and sales of assets. These agreaments may be used for general corporate purposes and none were
drawn upon as at 31 March 2017. The company is in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the
credit agreements described above.

Bank averdratt
The bank overdraft is an unsecured 54,0 million facility as at 31 Mar 2017 (2016: $4.0 million), Interest is
charged at prevailing market rates. Bank overdraft is payable on demand and subject to annual review.
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Capital management
This section covers the capital structure of the consolidated entity.

14. Contributed equity
Consolidated Comolidated

w17 2016
‘000 §'000
120,000 120,000

Ordinary shares lully paid

Ovdinary shores
Al 31 March 2017 there were 120,000,000 ordinary shares fully paid.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
consolidated entity in proportion (o the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in persan or by proxy, 5 entitled to
ane vole, and upon & poll each share is entitled to one vote.

15. Reserves
Comnalidated Comolidated
7 MG
$'000 $'000
Foreign currency translation resende
Balance at 1 April .58 8,100
MHek e“hinge differences on translation nl'f-nrﬂgn associate entihy 216 |5.591)
Halance at 31 March 3,425 2,305

Forelgn currency transhotion resene
Exchange differences arlsing on translation of investment accounted for using the equity method is taken to
the foreign currency translation reserve. The reserve is subsequently recognised n profit and loss when the

net investment is disposed of,
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Capital management (continued)

16. Retained Earnings

Balance at 1 April

Profit attributable to cwners of the parent
Total availabile for approgriation te owners of the parent

Dividends pabd

Balance at the end of the period

Dividends

EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)

oOoOooodn

Fully-franked dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 of 8.0 cents (31

March 2016 4.4 cants) per fully paid share
Total dividends paid

Conolidated Consdidated
2017 Mi&
4°000 §'000

1011073 857,234
107458 155074
1. 118,531 1,016,310
(7175} {5.235)
1,111,352 1,011,073

Coasalidated Consodidated
2T 2016
$'000 000

7178 5,235
[EEC] 5,235

Under the income tax consalidation regime, the franking account balance of the company as at 1 April 2003
wis permanently transferred to the Head Entity of the consalidated tax group. The company ceases to have a
franking account during the time it remains a member of the consolidated group,

The income tax consolkdation rules do permit the company to pay a ranked dividend to its shareholder with
the Head Entity"s franking account beanng a reduction for the franking credit attached 1o the dividend.

Dividends pald during the year ended 31 March 2007 were fully franked.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before the end of the year but not distributed

at the end of each reporting period,
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Financial instruments and risk

This section covers the financial instruments held by the consolidated entity including derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments and financial risk management infarmation.

17. Derivative financial instruments

Consalidated Consolidated
oy M6
$'000 $4 000
Assaly
Interast rate swap contracts 55,405 69,316
Cross currany swip contracds 164,167 344,196
Forward foreign exchange contracts 6, 854 »
Darlwative Financial instrument assets 336,436 a14,112
Lesa: Bilateral credit visluation adjustmant |393] (%,038)
Total derhrative Mnanclal instromeent dssels - hebd at falr valus 346,043 a411,0748
Liatsiiithes
Interest ralo swap contracts 237 66,238
Cross currency swikp contracts 80,137 117,268
Forward foreign exchange contracts 41003 74,669
Tatal derhvative financial instrument liabilities - held at fair value 192,377 FLE, 215
Current Darfwrtive Financiol instrimen s
Derivative Financial Assels 105, 4448 65,576
Dierivative Financeal Liabilities JLOTG 133,672
Mon-current Derfvative Finaoncial instruments
Depivative Financial Assets 24, 595 345,498
Derivative Financial Liabilities 100,301 118,563

Measurement

Derivative financial asset and Rabdlity are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
srtefed into and are subsequently remeasured (o their fair value a1 the end of each reporting period. The
darivatives have mot been designated as hedging instruments; consequently, changes in the fair value of
darivatives are recognised immediately in profit or 1055 as interest expense and similar charges. This may, 1o
the extent that they are not offset by the translation of the iterms econemically hedged, introduce valatility in
the consolidated entity's profit or loss and produce amomalous results.

Fair walue estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is based on
quoted market prices a1 the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial
instruments held by the company is the mid-price.

The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market [over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques, The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency

swaps are calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of foreign
exchange contracts is determined using the forward exchange market rates at the end of the reperting period.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
17. Derivative financial instruments {continued)

Bilateral credit valuotion adjustments

The credit valuation adjustment is an adjustment to the fair value of the derivative instruments to account for
the counterparty credit risk [CCR). It is a price of CCR which depends on the counterparty credit spreads and
market factors that drive the derivative values.

Significont accaunting estimate

The consolidated entity applies significant estimates and assumptions to make reasonable judgements on
carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles. One area that involves a high level of estimates or complexity of
assumptions |s dervative linancial instruments.

Fair volue herarchy
The table below analyses financial iInstruments carried at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels
are delined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labllities

Level 2: inputs ather than guoted prices included within level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or
liaksility, either directly (i.e., 35 prices) or indirectly (ie., derived from prices)

Lewwed 3: inputs for the asset ar ability that are not based on observable market data

The consolidated entity’s financial instruments that are measured and recognised at falr value are derivative
assets and derivative lablities used for hedging (le., interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward
exchange cantracts), While these instruments are used for economic hedging, the consclidated entity does not

apply hedge accounting.

Falrvalue hierarchy

AS AT 31 MARCH 1017 Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Total Balance
5'000 5000 5000 $'000

Derivative financial assets through profit or loss

Cerivatives used for econemic hedging - 345,043 - 346,043

Derivative financial liabilities throwgh profit or loss

Benwatives used for economic hedging - 152,377 - 152,377

A5 AT 31 MARCH 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Balance
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'o00

Diriiwiative financial assets through profit or loss

Defivatives used for economic hedging . A1L,074 - a1.074

Dariwative financial labilities through profit or loss
Derivatives used for rconomic hedging - 258,235 . 258,235
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
18. Non-derivative financial instruments

Fair volue measuremenls

Thee lair value of finandal assets and finarcial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or
for disclosure purposes. Estimated discounted cash flows are used to determine falr value for financial
Instruments.

Thie table belgw summarises the carrying amounts and the fair values of those financial assets and labilities
not presented on the consolidated entity’s balance sheet at fair value,

Consolidated Cansalidated
T 16
Carying  Fair Carrying Fair
Aumount Valua Amount Walué
$'000 5000 §'o00 §'000
Flmancial Adsets
Lodns and receivables 15,002, Y94 16,434,778 13,820,515 15,224,718
Fimancial Liabifithes
Due to banks and other financial institutions 5,710,604 5,761,319 5261208 3,335,635
Bands and comimercial pagar 5,312,608 9,481,152 BSALA5S B.866, 705
15,083,273 15,242 431 13,902,701 14,205,330

The carrying amaunts of trade recelvables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to
their short term nature. The fair value of the loans and receivables is estimated at portfolio level by
discounting the contractual cash flows using current lending rate. The fair value of financial labilities is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash fows at the current market interest rate that ks available
1o the graup lar similar financial instruments. The fair value ef current borrowings approximates the carrying
amount, as the impact of discounting is nat significant.

19, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Finangial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of finandal position
where the consolidated entity currenily has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there Is intenticn to settle on @ net basis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously, The
cansolidated entity has also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allew for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as ratings downgrade or event of
default.

The following table presents the recognised financial mstruments thot are offset, or subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements but not offset, as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, The column ‘net
amount” shows the impact on the consolidated entity’s statement of financial position If set-off rights were
exerched.
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Financial instruments and risk [continued)

19. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Effects of oflsetting on the statement of financlal position Relsted amounts not offset

Ciross Mal
sel-ofl in the: prisented in Aarnunts
statement ol ke stalement sulject o
fimancial of financial  master natting

s dmaianty pasitkan posithan  arrangements Het amount
2017 S0 $'om0 4000 4000 $%o00
Fimanclal sssets
Carsh and cash squivalents (b) 1,268,572 . L, 365 5T - L I6EAT2
Loans and recaivables 13,857,261 s 13,857,261 * 11,857.261
Deriwatve fimancial enstramests (i) Bah, a1 - s, 041 [uam, Fau) 8,310
Caher assets (a) 51,3596 | 10, 360) 35,018 : 15.01f
Total 15,523,272 {16,185 15,506,492 {149, 706} 15,147, 168
Financisl llabitities
Duw o banks & other A [b) 3,710,604 L, 5,710,804 - 5, 10,6048
Deriwative financial instrements |b) 1w - 11,377 [L19,T26] TLE651
Othar liabilities (4] ML T [ 1E.360) 346,418 - 34,418
Tokal 205,119 [1b,380] 0,299, 199 {1y, ) 6, 12,673
F. 1Y
Finandlal amsets
Cash and cash equivalents [b) 1,159, 106 . 1,194, 20 . 1,199,106
Loanms and receivabies 12,535,376 . 13,693,178 = 12,695,316
Dsivative finameial insbruments (b) A1L074 . a11,07 1198, 209) 27T S
Orther axvets [a) 7,278 {20, Ea5) 53,381 , 53,343
Total 14,379,514 {20, 895) 14,358,939 {148, 309) 14,225,100
Fimancial Habilities
Dt bo banks & other Fi {b) 5,261,716 . 5,261,216 . 5,261,216
Derteative financial instrameants [k BWRIS - 258,715 13,209 19,00
Otme [Labilities fa) 343,304 | 20,805} 122400 - A3 05
Total 5,862, 3% (B ] 5,841, B} [138.2970) 5. 708.651

[a) Offsetting arrangements

Cither assets and labilities
On the wholesale dealer statements, manthly financing and other receivables from dealerships are offset
against monthly commissions and other payables to dealerships. The amounts are settled and presented net

in the statement of financial position,
[b] Master netting arrangements and set-off arrangements = not currently enforceable

Derivative transactions with counterparties ane covered by ISDA agreements and term loans and cash deposits
afe covived by standard lean agreements, Under the terms of these arrangements, only upon an event of
default or ratings downgrade to a certain level, the net position owing/receivable to a select counterparty in
the same currency will be taken as owing and all the relevant arrangements terminated. As the consalidated
entity neither presently have a legafly enforceable right of set-off nor have intention to exercise the right,
these amount have not been offsel in the statement of financial position, but have been presented separately
in the table above,

a5

138/254



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0DO000DO000nDOdn(Eesss)
oOoOooodn

Financial instruments and Risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management

The consalidated entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk [including currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and residual value risk. The consolidated entity"s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and used vehicle markets and seeks
ta manage potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the consolidated entity,

The consclidated entity does net enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes, Derivative fingncial instruments are wied to manage the consolidated
entity's expasure to currency risk and interest rate risk, The residual value risk of the consolidated entity arises
mainky fram recelvables under operating lease and loans with guaranteed future value.

Risk managemant is carried oul by various eommittees and departments based on charers approved by senior
management in accordance with the company’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework. These include:

Enterprise Risk Committes
The Enterprise Risk Committea is established with the purpase of driving an appropriate risk cultute across the
enterprise and enabling the organisation to achieve its business goals,

Assel & Liohility and Pricing Cammittes

During the year, the company took action to merge the Asset and Liability Committee and the Pricing
Committes to form the Asset & Uability and Pricing Committee. The Asset & Liability and Pricing Committes
meets to:

»  proactively and collaboratively manage and menitor the nterest rate and liquidity risks of the
consalidated antity; and

®  actively assess new business margins in connection with velume and interest rate requirements, and a
changing interest rate and eompetitor environment.

The eonsolidated entity's Treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Treasury
department implements the consolidated entity's poficies b manage the consclidated entity's forelgn
currancy risk, interest rate risk, lquidity risk, and credit risk with banks and ather financial intermediaries.

Credit Risk Committes

During the year, the company took action to merge the Credit Rsk Committee and Retail Credit Risk
Committee to form the Credit Bisk Committee. The Credit Risk Committes is responsible for the rgk
assessment, ongoing management, collection, enforcement and write-off of monies lent by the company. The
commitiee ensures that the core credit operations of the company are aligned with the corporate goals and
objectives. Its fecus is on the credit risk assessment and an ongoing evaluation of credit granted to retail
customers, dealer wholesale and fleet credit.

Residual Value Committes

The Residual Value Cammittes undertakes 1o measure and assess residual values on assets bosed on best
practice and critical variable information such as used car market dynamics, economlc conditions,
governmental policies/reguiations, the eredit market and the conditions of assets under lease/with guaranteed
future value, It reports all matters with patential impact on residual value of assets and all other matters which
would mitigate potential residual value risks to the consolidated entity.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committes is tasked to assist the Board of Directors of the company and management in the
exercise of 115 oversight responsibilities ower the systerns of internal contral, intefnal Judit acthities and
ensuring i constant communication amongst the Audit Committes, management, external awdit and internal
audit.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management {continued)

Compliance Commitiee
The Compliance Committes i responsible for the establishment, publication and mamntenance of the

Compliance Framework to manage the consolidated entity's compliance with all the laws, regulations and
cades of practice that apply to the business and the maintenance of the company's ACL and AFS Licenses.

Internal Audit

The internal Audit Depastment provides mdependent, objective assurance and consulting activities designed
to add walue and improve the consolidated entity's operations. It assists management in identifying and
mitigating risks, and recognising kaizen opportunities through its review of business processes, systems,
contrals, environment and activities,

{a) Market risk

fil  Foreign exchonge risk
The consolidated entity operates in inlesnational capital markets 1o obtain debt funding to support its
earning assets, Transaclions may be denominated in foreign currencies, exposing the consolidated entity
ta foreign exchange risk arising from various currency expasures.

Forelgn exchange risk arises fram recognited assets and labilities denominated in currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency and net investments in foreign operations. The risk is measured using debt
maturity analysis.

Management has set up a policy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange risk
against its Tunctional currency. The consolidated entity is required to economically hedge 100% of its
foreign exchange risk at the time of debt isswvances. Derivative financial instruments are entered into by
the consolidated entity to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk, including:

=  Forward exchange conbracts to hedge the foreign currency risk arising on the issue of commerclal
paper in forelgn currencies and affiliated entity loan; and

®  Cross curmency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with foreign
currency denominated medivm term notes.

The consolidated entity's net exposure 1o foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period ended
31 March 2017 is immaterial. There has been no change in this position when compared to the reporting
period ended 31 March 2016.

(i)  Cosh flow and forr value interest rate sk

Cash flow and falr value interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, Falr value interest rate risk s the risk that the

value of a financial instrument will Muctuate because of changes in markel interest rates, The
consolidated entity is exposed 1o the elfecis of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates as it borrows and lends funds at both fleating and fixed interest rates. Derivative financial

Instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to economically hedge its exposure to cash flow

and fair value Interest rate risk, including:

*=  Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manzge the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated
entity’s earning assets. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting loans and
receivables from fixed rates to floating rates; and

*  Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consalidated
entity’s functional currency denominated fixed rate medium term notes. Such interest rate swaps
have the economic effect of converting borrowings from fixed rates to floating rates; and
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

() Market risk (continued)
(i} Cash flow and foir value interest robe risk fcantineed)

& Cross currency swaps o manage the forelgn currency and intevest rate risk associated with foreign
currency denominated medium ferm notes. Such crass currendy swaps have the economic effect of
converting borrowings from foreign denominated fied or fioating rates o functional currency
floating rates.

Under the interest rate swaps, the consalidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified
intervals |mainly quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. Under the eress currency
swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foreign
currency principal and fised {or fioating] rate interest amounts, and functional currency principal and
floating rate Enterest amounts calculated with reference to the agreed functional currency pringipal
amount.

The consalidated entity's pelloy Is to maintain most of its debt exposure in its functional currency at floating
rate, using interest rate swaps or cross currendy Swaps 10 achieve this when necessary.

The following table details the consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting

period.
017 Variable Fixed Nan
Consolidated Interest Interest Interest
Rate Rate Bearing Total
$'000 4'000 $'000 £'000

|Dperating Leasa recehvabile - 1,208,566 . 1,208,566
Financial Assets

Cash and liquid assets 1,268,572 - - 1,268,572
Loans and receivables 3,393,910 | 10,619,843 . 14,013,753
Interaest rate swaps B971,250 | (3.971,250| - .
Other assets . - 35,016 35,016
Total financial assets 13,633,732 2,857,159 35,016 | 16,535,907
Financial Liabilitles

Banks & ather financial institutions 5,318,037 - - 5,318,037
Loans from related company 352,567 - - 392,567
Commercial papers 2,733,114 - - 2,733,114
redium term notes 1,396,992 5.192,563 - 6,589,555
Cross currency swaps 1,958,055 | [1,958.065)] ' -
Interest rate swaps 1,764,900 | (3.764,900] - -
Other liabilities = . 346,418 346,418
Total fimancial Habilities 15,563,665 530,392} 346,418 15,379,691
Met Financial Assets/Liabilitles (1,924,033]] 3,387,551 {311,402) 1,146,716
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Financial instrumeants and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) market risk [continued)
{il} Cash fiaw and fair valve interest rate risk feantinued)

2016 Variable Fixed Non
Consolidated Interest Interest Intrest
Rate Rate Bearing Tatal
5000 $'000 5'000 5'000

Operating Lease recelvable - 1,165,500 - 1,165,500
Financial Assets

Cash and liquid assets 1,159,106 - B 1,199,106
Loans and receivables 3,134,749 9,724,241 - 12,858,990
Interest rate swaps BBE7.250 | (8,BE7,250) - -
Other Assets - . 53,383 53,383
Total financial assets 13,221, 105 24,002,491 53,383 | 15,276,979
Financial Liabilities

Banks & other financial institutions 4,896,753 - - 4,896,753
Loans froam redated company 364,464 - - 364,464
Commercial papers 2,081,551 . = 2,081,951
Medium term notes 1,756,193 5,263,335 - 6,559,534
‘Cross currency swaps 2,215,485 | |2,215.485) - -
Interest rate swaps 3,502,300 | (3,502, 300} - -
Other liatilities . - 322,409 322,409
Tatal financial liabilities 14,357,152 {454, 456) 122,409 14,225,111
Met Financial Assets/Uabilities (1136,047)| 2,456,041 | ([260,006)| 1051368

(] Sensitiwiy

The consolidated entity's financial results are exposed to interest rate movements in the market. Shown below
is the potentiad impact of a 1% increase in interest rate on the consolidated entity’s pre-tax profits Tor the naxt
twelve months, A 1% decrease in interest rate has an oppasite impact of the same amaunt.

Consolidated Consolidated
2017 2016
5'000 $'000
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points {1,250 16a]
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20. Financial risk management [continued}

[b) Credit risk

The consolidated entity takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will cause a
financial loss far the consolidated entity by failing to discharge on obligation. Credit exposures arise principally
from lending activities for financing assets, funding activities such as cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and financial institutions and derivative fimancial instruments,

i} Lending activities
The consolidated entity’s financing assets are exposed to three areas: retall, fleet and wholesale.

Retail
The retail portfolio is the largest area which comprises a range of loans and receivables from individual
consumers and small business.

Fleet
The feet portiolic comprises a range of loans and receivables and motor vehicles under operating bease from
small 1o lange commercial clients and gowernment badies. It also includes novated leasing customers.

Credit risk arising from individual consumers and small business is managed through the application of eredit
scoring and manual underwriting to Identify and evaluate acceptable risks and portfolio diversification bath
demagraphically and geographically. Credit risk arising from fleet clients is managed by imposition and review
[at a minimum annually) of credit limits to ensure fleet clients have the capacity to settle financial
commitments, Collateral is alss used to secure funds advanced. The pringpal collateral types are:

» in the case of term purchase and lease products, title of the leased vehicle is retained until final settiement

under the terms of the agreement;
& Charges over vehicles in the case of loan products,

Repossessed vehicles are sobd wsing various channels as spon as practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce
the outstanding indebtedness.

The following table shows the past due exposure on loans and receivables which includes unimpaired and
Impaired amounts.

Comsalidated Consolidated

miy M6
$'000 §'000
Retail past due exposure

30 days and below 345,481 346, 706
31-60 days 113,386 100,231
61-30 days 44,509 45,672
over W days 63,601 33,725
377 552,334
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20. Financial risk management {continued}

[b] cCreditrisk [continued)

fi} Lending activities {continued)

Consolidated Consolidated

mr 16
$'000 $'000
Fleet past due exposure
30 days and below 27,392 119,810
G0 days 9,238 0,443
61-90 days 4,230 4,840
over 90 days 3,588 10,5904
244,444 155,997
Total past due exposure 12,825 708,331
Impaired loans and recaivables:
Retail 144,638 149,088
Flest 24,907 5.7
Total impaired lzans and receivables 171,045 174,195

The consolidated entity uses provisioning models to assess the credit quality of financing assets and estimates
provision for amounts not collectible. Amsunts not provided for are deemad collectible.

Wholesale
The wholesale portfolio includes floor-plan finance to motor dealers for new and used maotor vehicle stock
under either a:
= Bailment facility, under which motor vehicles are bailed by the company (o a dealer, and the company
retains ownership of each vehicle untll the dealer sells it to a customer; or
&= (Charge plan facility, under which the company provides finance to a dealer for purchase of mator
vishickes which are charged to the company as security.

in addition to the floor-plan facllitkes, the whelesale portfolio alse Includes term loans to dealerships to finance
property and premises, and revolving working capital loans. These loans are typically secured by general
securily agreaments, real property mortgages and personal guarantees.

Due to the nature of these facilities there ks a concentration in the moter vehicle dealership industry, with the
risk spread acrass market lecations throughout Australia, In addition to the collateral security obtained credit
risk ix managed through regular auditing of the dealerships wehicle inventory, monthly monitoring of financial
perfarmance and ongoing annual reviews.

The concentration of credit risk in relation to the two operating segments is reflected in the note 7.
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)

20, Financial risk management {continued)

|b) Credit risk [continued)

fii} Funding activithes

The consolidatad entity's Treasury Department manages credit risk through the use of external rating such as
standard and Poor's rating or equivalents, counterparty diversification, menitoring of counterparty financial

condition and ensuring master nelling agreements are in place with all derivative counterparties,

The below table shows the percentage of the consplidated entity’s money market deposits and derivatives
relating to funding activities, based on the Standard & Foor's rating.

Consalidated Consolidated

017 016

% ]
Al 14 26
A+ a0 9
A 56 45

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk at the end of the reporting period, without taking into account collateral
ohtained, is the carrying amount, net af any allowance for doubtful debts or impairment, of each financal
asset, including derivative financial instruments, in the statement of fingncial position.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the consalidated entity |s unable to meet its payrment obligations assoclated with
its financial liabilities when they fall due and ta replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may
be failure to meet obligations to repay creditors and fulfil commitments to lend. The consolidated entity, in the
normal course of business, reguires substantial funding 1o suppart the level of its saming assets and working
capital requirements, conseguently is exposed to liquidity risk.

The liquidity management precesses carried out by the Treasury Department incliwdes:

s Day-to-day funding managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be
met. This includes planning replenishment of funds before they mature orfand borrowed by
customers, The consolidated entity maintains an active presence In domestic and international
capital markets to enable this to happen;

- Monitoring the concentration and profile of dett maturities; and

- Maintaining backup credit facilities
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Financial instrumeants and risk {continued)

20. Financial risk management (continued)

{c] Liquidity risk

i) Flnancing arrangements

The consolidated entity utilises various financing arrangements such as commercial paper, medium term
notes, bilateral bank lcans and securitisation te Mmoot liguidity requirements. It has access to a wide array of
credit facilities to manage liquidity risk (refer to Mote 13).

fii) Mdaturity of financial labilitics

The tables below analyses the consolidated entity’s financial Babilities into rebevant maturity groupings based
on their remaining contractual maturity as at the reporting period for all:

« non-derivative financial Habilities; and
& net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For interest rate swaps the cash flows
hawe been estimated wsing forward interest rates applicable at the end of the reparting period.

07 <1 1-3 312 15 Ower s
Consolidated Month Maonthe Manths Years Years Total
000 $'000 $ 000 4"000 §'000 $'000
MNon-dernatives
Banks & ather linancial
institutions 184,130 629,791 1,518,927 3,534,451 - 5,B57,13%
Bonds & commercial paper JTLERE | 1854483 ) TA3T952 4,751,613 - 9,752,936
Cither latilities 177,252 31456 63,307 A0 = 36419
Total non derivatives 11352 | 2535730 | 3,965,186 8,360,508 - 15,996,690
e vatives
Forward Foreign Exchange
Contracts
- Bought currency (¥7a.566)| [B09.aZ2X]| (6%4560) - - |1, 778,950}
- Sald eumrency 2B AM B38.315 G54, 65T . - 1,819,458
Interest Rate Swaps 1,167 15,243} [E5.431) 6,531 - | 0,996}
[Cross Currency Swapi
- Pay leg 7.963 450,851 463,749 2,371,289 - 3,303,854
- Racaive leg (4,03 432, L36]) | SeleD, 504 (2,323,637) - 13,500,847)
Taotal dervatives 18,608 52,367 | 102,219] 145,817 = JATT0EL
{Total 1,153,878 1,588,007 3862067 8,214,651 - 45,819, 631
43
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Financial instruments and risk (continued)
20, Financial risk management (continued)
(C) Uguidity risk (continued)

fii] Moturity of financial iobilities (eontinued)

2016 =<1 1-3 312 1-5 Over s
Consolldated raonth Meanths Manths Years Years Total
§'000 §'000 $7000 o0 §'000 §000

Mon-derivatives
Banks & other fimancial
ingtitutions 516,348 217,380 1,981,718 2,710,739 - 5,426,135
Bonds & commarcial paper 55692 | L322, M2 | 2134621 5,106,335 s 5. 132,410
Othar liabilities 153,452 15,475 62,855 70,617 - 122,809
Total non darivatives 1228492 | 1575617 | 4,179.214 7,837,691 * 14,671,014
Dt iwaliwes
Farward Foreign Exchange
Contracts
- Bought currency [e0mas3i|  (335655)]  |187494) - . {932,802}
- Soid currency 413,789 372484 J3 413 - - 1,008,686
Interest Rate Swaps 4,520 {6553 {21521} 135, 700) - {59, 254)
Cross Currancy Swaps

Pay leg 11,153 13,135 585,177 2,667,347 - 1,677,807
- Recelve lag {3, 703} fGas0h|  [SR4BIFY| (2,260,227 . |3.858.711)
Total derivatives 36,297 33,5961 15,257) |238,585] = (163, 584)
Total 1,264,780 | 1,609,578 | 4173957 7,659,106 - 14,707,430
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Operating assets and liabilities

This section covers the operating assets and labilitles of the consolidated entity Including cash and cash
equivalents, prepayments, accounts payable and accrued expenses payable,

21. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Consolkdated
2017 016
5000 §'000
Cash on hand - 3
Cash in bank 148,572 199,103
Deposits at call 1,120,000 1,000,000
1,268,572 1,199,106

At the end of inancial year, the company held $198.0 million (2016: 5160.7 million) in cash and deposits at call
regresenting cash collections on securitised assets transferred to special purpose entities

Recognition ond megsurement

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in bank, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-

term, highly liquid invesiments with original maturities of three manths or less that are readily convertible to

known amounis of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafits.

Cash in bank and deposits at call earn interest at prevailing market rates. Interest is recognised in the Income |
statement using the effective interest rate method.
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Operating assets and liabilities {continued)
22. Cash flow Information

Reconciliation of profit for the year to net cash from operating activities
Consalidated Consolidated

F. i b Fain i)
$000 $'000
Profit atiributable to owners of the parent 107 458 155,074
Share of profitof associates (8, 203] [7,618)
Depreciation and amortisation of plant and equipment 27,352 23,139
Amartization - upfront receipts (i3] [aa4]
Amartisation - prepald expenses 20,010 20,106
Nt gainf{loss] on sale of non-current assets {9,560 &, 057
Mot gainf{less) en transtation of foreign curmency transactions 15,927 [522,917)
Changes in fair vales of finandial instruments |33,334) 269,292
Movements in operoting ossets ond iratwities:
Increasef{decreasa) in provisian fer impairment of receivable {7123 |1%,486)
Increasef{decrease) in provision for impairment on residual value 307 5,086
[mncrease) in loans and recelvables [1,154, 763) [445,954]
[Inerease)/decrease in assets under net oparating lease (not of
accumulated depreciation) [33,360) [42810]
Decreasefincrease) in delerred tax asset |7.507) 18,1239
Increase incurrent labilities B,158 15,242
Decrease/[increase) in current assets 1,148 13,336}
Increasef|dacrease] in income tax payable to related entities 15,851 [18,054)
Inreasef|decrease] in derivative finandal instrements at falr value
through profit or hoss [787) 417,989
Mt cash outflow from operating activities [1,025,11F) | 118,601
23. Other assets
Consalldated Consolidated
2017 216
$'000 $'000
Prapaymants 24,682 43,871
Other dabtors 3150 7.678
Accrued intarast recebeable on cash and cash equivalents 1.184 LB
15,015 53,383
Other assets expected to be recovered within 12 monihs 26,851 30,655
Other assets axpected to be recovered after mare than 12 months B, 124 12,715
35,016 53,383
46
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Operating assets and liabilities (continued)

24, Other liabilities
Consolidited  Consolidated

2017 2016
§'000 5'o00
Unearned warranty revenue 1,504 1,491
Emploves entitlemants 0,686 0,465
Accrued interest payable 50,280 60,219
Ampunis payable to related entities 113,484 96,701
Accounts payable 48,636 40,658
Accrued expenses 107,384 99,380
Other 15,344 13,9495
446,418 322409
Other liabilities expected to be settled within 12 months 272,014 251,793
Other liabllities expected to be settled In more than 12 months 74,404 70,616
346,418 322409
Number of employess st end of reporting perlad 687 653
Employee entitlements
(a) Shornt-term obligations

Liabifities for wages and salaries, including annual leave expected to be settied within 13 manths of the end of
each reporting period are recognised in other payables in respect of employees” services up to the reporting
date and are measured at the amounts expected to be pald when the Hability Is settled. Liabilities for non-
accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at rates pakd or payable.

{b) Other lang-term employee benefit obligations

The llabilities for long service leave are not expected to be settled whaolly within 12 months after the end of the
peried in which the employees rendered the related service. They are therefore recognised in the provision lor
emplayee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of each reporting perod, Consideration is given at expecied
Tuture wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market ylelds at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms
o maturity and currency that match, a5 closely as possible, the estimated future cash flows.

The abligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the consalidated entity does not have
an unconditional right to defer settiement for at least twelve months after the reporting date regardiess of
when thie xctual settiement is expected Lo occur

{c} Retirement benefit oblgation

All employees of the consolidated eatity are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death from the
consalidated entity's superannuation plan, The consalidated entity has a defined contribution plan, The
defined contribution plan recenves fiked contributions from the consolidated entity and the consolidated
enlity's legal and constructive obligation is limited to these contributions.

Contributians to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset (o the extent that cash refund, or a reduction in the future payments
i5 available.
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Non-operating assets

This section outlines the non-operating assets of the consolidated entity. Induded in this section are the
following infermation:

+ Investment accounted for using the equity method

* Property and eguipment

» Deferred tax asset

25. Investment accounted for using the equity method

Countryof  Consolidated  Comolidated orwnership interest

Mame of entity Ineorparatian
a7 NG oy 016
§000 $'000 % %

(8] Movement in carrylng amount

Linlsted

Toyota Finance Mew Zealand Uimited  New Zealand

Carrying amount at 1 April 62,495 65,716 4545 4545

Share of profits after income tax B,203 1610

Dividands recived (7,173 (%, 235}

Net axchange differences on

translation of foreign assoclate entity 916 15,550}

Carrying amount &t 31 March 64,439 62,459

The principal activities of Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were:
- to finance motoar velilchs aequisitians in the formof leasing, term purchase, consumer and
commercial loans;
- to provide ballment facilities and commerdial loans to Teyota dealers;
- the marketing of vehide and finance related insurance products;
- the provision of retail finance and related products for pleasure boats; and
- the provision af unsecured personal loans.

irvestments In assoclates are accounted for 16 the consolidated financial statéments using the equity method
of aceounting and are carried at cost.

Consolidated  Consolidated

2017 P 1
$'o00 $°000
[b) Share of associates’ profits
Profit before income tax 11,436 9,903
Incaimié Lk expanse 13,1313) | 2,293}
rralit after income tax 8,203 7,610
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Mon-operating assets (continued)

25, Investment accounted for using the equity method (continued)

[e] Summarised financlal Information of assoclates

Consolidated entity’s share of:
Assats Liabilitiny Revenuss  Proffit
$'000 £'000 5'000 £7000
Consolidated 2017
Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited 432,133 417.087 56,6603 8203
Consolidated 2016
Toyota Finance Mew Zealand Umnited 437,061 373,955 55,574 7,610

Comsolidated  Consolidated

Z017 2016
$'000 S'o00
(d} Share of sssocistes axpanditure commitmants
Lease commitments. 2,790 2,640

Principles of consolidation

Associates are all entities over which the consolidated entity has significant influence but not contrel, generally
accampanying a shareholding of batween 20% and 50% of the vating rights. lnvestments in associales are
accounted for in the consolidated finandal statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

The consolidated entity’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or lesses is recognised in profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in resenaes is recognised in other comprehensive income, The
cumulative post-acquisiion movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment
Dividends receivable from assoclates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction
against the carrying amount of the investment.

When the consolidated entity’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of its assodate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the consolidated entity and its associates are aliminated to the
axtent of the consolidated entity’s interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impalrment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where neceitary 16 enture condisteney with the policios adepted by the consalidated
entity.
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Non-operating assets (continued)

25. Investment accounted for using the equity method (continued)

Forelgn currency tronsfation

{a) Functional and presentation currency

ttems. Included in the financial statements of each of the consolidated entities are measured using the
eurrency of the primary economic emaranment in which the entity operates |‘the functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian doflars, which s the company’s functional and

presentation currency.

On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the transiation of the net imestment in the foreign
entity from functional te presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive incoma.

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency wsing the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Forelgn eachange gains and losses resulting from the settlement aof such
transactions and from the translation al year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

26, Property and equipment

Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Carrying Value
.1 ) mr L
$000 £'000 L5000
Leasehold improvemants Ba04 1,537 268
Plant and equipmant 22,732 20,682 .050
Motor vehicles 6,693 a4 5,914
38,034 5,003 832
Accumulated
Cosl Depreciation Carrying Value
016 2016 ot 1]
$'000 $'000 §'000
Leasehald Improvements B.337 6,582 1,815
Plant and equipment 1,735 19,503 2,032
Mator vahicles 7,239 1,093 6,140
17,371 27,184 10,187
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Non-operating assets (continued)

26. Property and equipment |continued)

Lease hold Plant and
improvements equipment  Maotor vehicles Tokals
Consolidated 2017 §'000 $'000 000 o
Carrying value st 1 April 1,815 3,212 6,140 10,187
additions 7 599 2,781 5587
Disposals - : |4, 560) (4,560)
Depreciation |usaj [1.151) |LE4T {3, 787}
Carrying value at 31 March BGE 20540 5,914 L EEY
Leaschald Plant and
Improvements egquipmant  Motor vehicles Totals
Consclidated 016 §'000 $000 $°0o0 $'000
Carrying value at 1 Apeil 2,689 757 5,146 10592
Additions 00 T25 6,555 7.480
Disposals . . [ERuci)] [3,735]
Depreciation |1, 0758 §1.249| |1 mEby |43, 05 )
Carrying value at 31 March 1,814 2,233 i, 1440 10,187

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amaunt. These are
included in profit or loss.,

Recognition end measuremeant
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost bess accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the sequigition of the iterns,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the consolidated
entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All ather repairs and malmenance are charged to
profit or less during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property and equipment is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net
of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as lollows:

Asset Class Method Estimated Useful Life
Praperty and equipment Straight lame 3-5 years

Maotor vehicles Straight lim 1- 3 years

Leaschold improvements Straight line Unexpired portion of lease or useful

life of asset whichewver s sharter

The assets' residual values and wselul lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount If the assel's earrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

L1
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Non-operating assets (continued)

27. Intanglble assets

Cost Amortisation Carrying Value
software Consolidated Consolidated Consolidated
4000 £'000 000
March 2017 151,085 117,510 33575
March 2016 142,306 102,210 40,056

Consolidated Consolidated

2017 e

$'000 $'000
Carrying value at 1 April 40, 0%6 44 988
Additions 20,057 16,085
Amortisation expense {15, 749) 119,043)
Wite-off |7,851) 3
RED Claim {2,978) 11,923)
Carrying value at 31 March 33,575 40,096

Recognition and measurement

software consists of capitalised IT development costs being internally generated intangible assets. These
conust of system software purchased and customised to the needs of the entity as well a5 internally
developed software projects.

Capitalised software is recognised when it is probable that the project (i} will be completed considering its
commercial and technical feasibility, (i} will contribute to future period financial benefits through revenue
generation and/or cost reductions; and (ili} its costs can be measured reliably. The expenditure capitalised
comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services and direct labour. Capitalised
eomputer software development is amartized from the point at which the asset is ready for use on a straight
line basis over its useful bfe, which varies fram 3 1o 10 years.

impairment of assets

Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in cireumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s careying amount exceeds its recoverable amaunl. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to resell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impalirment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash Infiows from other asset groups (cash generating units)
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MNon-operating assets (continued)

28. Deferred tax assets

Consolidated Consolidated

o G
000 §000
Deferred tax asselt balances comprise temporary diiferences
attributable to;
Amounts recognised in the Dalance Sheet
Provision for impairment of lcans and advances 56,977 58,192
Fimamcial Instruments (Erct] 3. 752)
Accrued expenses 26,411 25,551
Sundry items L] 44891
Total amount recognised In the Balance Sheet Re A1 . R42
Deferrod tax Rabllity balances comprise temporery differences
attributable bo:
Armounts recognised in the Balance Sheet
Assets financed under lease 6,241 59,337
Sundry items 4,614 9,438
Total amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 68,859 68,775
Mot deferred lax awets 17,574 10,067
Gross Defarmed tax assets opening balanca: 78,842 AL,397
Mavament in temporary differences during the year
Provizion for impairmant of loans and advancas (1,215} (3,120
Financial Instruments 9,468 |9,625)
Aeeruad expenes BED 1,738
Sundry toms {1,123} [1,.504]
Gross Delerred tan sssets closbng balance #6833 T8, 842
Gross Doferred tax liabilities opening balanos: 68,775 63,140
Maowement in temporary differences during the year:
aAssets linanced under lease 4,904 5212
Sundry it ms [d.820) a3
Gross Defenred Lax Habilithes chosing Lalane 68859 68, 77%
Mat deferred tax assots 17,974 10,067
Deferred tax asset | | liabilities] expected to be settled within 12 months |4, 68} |3,044)
Deferred tax asset / | llabilities) expected to be settied beyond 12 months 22,058 13,111
17,972 10,067

Refer 1o Note & Income tax expense lor further information on Income tax,

a2
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Unrecognised items

This section provides information about items that are not recognised In the financial statements as they do
nat satisfy the recognition criteria but aré relevant for the understanding of the financal performance of the
consolidated entity.

29. Contingent liabilities

The comgany, a5 8 member of the Toyota Motor Corporation Australin Limited GST Group (GST Group), is
jointly and severally liable for 100% of the goods and services tax {GST] payable by the GST Group. The GST
Group had a net GST payable as al 31 March 2017 of 552.8 million [2016: 548.2 mvillion).

The campany, In association with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner, implemented
the income tax consolidation legislation from 1 Apeil 2003 with Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited as
the Head Entity. Under the income tax condolidation legislation, Income tax consalidation entities are jointhy
and severally liable for the income tax liability of the consobdated income tax group unkess an Income tax
sharing agreement has been entered into by member entifies, At the date of signing this financial report an
income tax sharing agreement has been executed. The directors befieve the assets of the Head Entity are
sufficient to meet the income tax liabilities as they fall due.

The range of Teyota Extra Care warranty contracts, offered by the company since August 2003, provide an
extended warranty to the custamer in exchange for an upfront premium payment, The risk of claims has been
fully Insured with third party insurers, The directors consider the insurance of risk is sufficlent to meet any
clairms which may eventuate.

A fully maintained eperating bease is olfered under the company’s curnent portfolio of products. Fully
malntained operating leases require the company 1o provide agreed services at the company’s expense.
Manthly rental includes a pre-determined charge fer such services. The actual cost of such services is
expensed periodically during the term of the leases and recognised in the income statement in reference fo
the stage of completion mathod.

30, Commitmants

{a}) Lease commitments
Consolidated Consolidated

Hr 2016
$'000 5'000
Operating leases
Aggregate amount contracted but not provided for in the
accounts are as follows:
- Premizes 11,232 15,052
Due witin one year 4,351 4,764
Due after one year but no later than five years 6,861 10,288
11,252 15,052

The company leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one to five years,
The leases have varying terms, escalations clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are
renegotiated. There are no lease commitments expested to be settled later than 5 years.
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Unracognised items (continued)

30, Commitments [continued)

(b} Capital commitments

Consolidated Consolidated

2017 016
'000 $'000
Expenditures contracted for at the end of each reporting period
but not recognised as liablities is as follows:
Intangible assets ! 1,587

31. Subsequent events

The directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in the report or
financial statements that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consclidated entity,
the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in subsequent financial years,
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Other disclosure matters

This section covers other information that is not directly related to specific line ftems in the financial
statements, Including Information about subsidiaries, related party transactions, parent entity infarmation

and other statutory disclosures.
32, Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities, and results of the following
subsidiaries in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1{oj:

Owmnership interest
Hame of entity Country of Class of March 2017 March 2016
incorporation shares % %
Tra (Wholesale) Pty. Limited® Australia Ordinary 100 100
Southern Cross Toyota 2009-1 Trust™* Australia Crdinary 100 100
King Koala TFA 2012-1 Trust™= Australia Crdinary 100 100

"ingestment value of 52 has boen rounded 1o nil. This subsidiary has been granted ieliaf from the necessity o prepane
financial statements in accordance with ASIC Instrument 2016785 issued by the Australian Securfties and Imeestment
Commisssan, Fos further information refer 1 note 36, The propartéan of the ownership interest is egual to the proportion
al voting power nedd

** | nvestrrent value of 510 has been rounded to Sail.

33, Related party transaction

This note shows the extent of related party transactions that are undertaken by the consolidated entity and
the impact they had on the financial perfermance and position al the entity.

(a) Entities in the wholly ownad group

The ultimate Australian parent entity is Toyota Finance Australia Limited, a whaolly owned subsidiary of Toyola
Financtal Services Corperation, which is a whelly owned subsidiary of the ultimate parent entity, Toyola Matar
Carporation incorporated in Japan.

[b) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in nete 32.

[e) Associates

Imwestments in associates are set out in note 25.
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Other disclosure matters (continued)

33, Related party transaction [continued)
[d} Key management persannel

(i} Key manogement persannel compensation

Consolidated Consolidated
Har H1G
§ -
Shart-term employee benefits 2,744,188 2,486,674"
Termination benefits - -
1,704,188 7,4E5,674

*In F¥2017, the compasition of the individuals considered as part of key management personnel was revised.
This resulted in a restatement of the FY2016 amount of 56,354,969

fii) Equity instrument disciosures relating to key monogement persoanel

Options over issued ardinary shares of the ultimate chief entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan,
granted during or since the end of the financial year to any directors or the five most highly remunerated
officers of the company and consolidated entity as part of thelr remuneration are enumarated below. These
options were part of Toyota Motor Corporation Glebal Incentive Plan of 1 August 2008, An option has a right
to acquire 100 commaon shares.

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Unexercised Dptions Unexercised Options
Directors
1. R Chandler, Managing Director 20 20
Shares under option

Issued ordinary shares of the ultimate chief entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan under option at the
date of this repart are as follows:

Issue
Date price  Balance st Exercised Granted  Balance at
optlons Date Explry date af startof the  duringthe duringthe end of the
granted exercisable shares period peried period period
ZAUR2010  1Aug2012  31Iul2018  (A) 2,000 . - 2,000

[A) The exercise price of optioos is based on the price eguasl 1o 1.025 times ihe ciosing price of Toyoda Maotor Corporstion comenaon shares
on the Takys Stock Fackangs s 3 the date the opilons were granted.

[} Logns fo key management persannel

Detalls of loans made to directors and other key management personnel of the company are set out below.

Az 31 March | Amount Outstanding Terms Awerage | Security
Financed Balance Rate
2017 : - : - -
18 Sraaoke | 52213000 3 yoars, wariable | 4.39% Soraned by 15 MOmEapes eed e koan sdopety |

No write-dewns ar allowance fof doubtiul debts were recognised on the key management personnel loans as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016,
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Other disclosure matters [continued)

33, Related party transaction (continued)
[e} Transactions and balances with related parties

Transactions with related parties are set out below. These are incleded in the consolidated entity's
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for the

period,

Consolidated Consolidated
00T 2016
$'000 $'000
Met Financing income
Affiliate finance income 22,643 29,554
Interest expense on loans from affilisted entity [2.252) 11,038}
Cradit support fees pald to parent entity (11,000} | 30, 3B}
Debt lssuance Fee to affiliated entity (169} .
Service feo pald to affiliated entity |337) v
Expanses
Marketing axpenses pald to affiliated entity H B850
security shared services fee 91 -
Assels
Loans and recetvables
Deffarred finance income from affiliates® (36,667} 131, 690)
Other assels
Accounts recetvable from affiliates® 4,249 11,933
Lichirties
Interest bearing loans payable to affiliates 392,567 364,263
Mon-intgrest bearing loans payable to affiliates 36, 706 3,475
Accounts payable to affiliates® 71,235 59,957
Accrued interest payable to affiliates 1,534 831
Accounts payable to parent entity® 5,543 5,269
Acerued expenses payable to affliates 262 *

Mo bad debts expense and allowance for doubtful debts were recognised in relation to any receivable due
fram related parties as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

* Non-interest bearing
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
34. Parent entity information
TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Parent Parent
07 Fath [
$'000 §'000

Nssets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,268,572 1,193,106

Loans and recelvables 13,857,261 12,695,376

Maotor vehicles under operating lease 1,175,133 1,135,139

Dorivative financial instruments 400,734 443,255

Investments in associates 4,284 4,284

Intangible assats 33,575 40,096

Property, plant and agquipment g832 10,187

Deferred tax assets 17,974 10,067

Other assets BET, 024 TR 074
Total Assels 17,653,389 16,257,584
Liabilities

Due bo banks and other financial institutions 2,564,367 2,865,989

Bonds and commercial paper 9,322,669 8,041,485

Related party liabilities 3,998,245 3,061,918

Darivative linandal instruments 152,377 258,235

Other Habilities 346,418 322,061
Total LEabilities 16,424,076 15,144,688
MNet Assels 1,220,313 1,107, 806
Equity

Contributed equity 120,000 120,000

Retained earnings 1,109,313 987,696
Total Equity 1,220,313 1,107 506

As at 31 March 2017, current assets and current liabilitles amounted to 57,769 million and $7,855 millian
respectively {2016: 57,281 milllon and 57,138 million respectively].
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
34, Parent entity Information (continued)
TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Parent Parent

7z mie6

£'000 5'000
interest and similar revenue 1,054,580 1,066,631
interest expense and similar charges | B63.058] [B54,034)
Net financing income 191,882 212,597
Other income 191,293 199,711
Net operating income 383,175 412,308
Bad and doubtful debts expense |39,566) 157,513)
Employee benefits expanse (93,817) |84, 160}
Depreciation, amortisation and impalrment
BRpENsE [27,382) 123,133}
IT and comminication expense (12,937} |10, 835)
Sales and marketing expanse [3.237) | 3.056)
Octupancy (&, 706) (E,469)
Other expensas (18,179} [17.532)
Profit hefore income tax 175,351 203,604
income tax expense a6, 754 |67, 968)
Profit after income tax 128,597 135,636

(b} Guarantees entered inta by the parent entity
The company has no financial guarantee in relation to securitisation of loans and receivalles,

(g} Contingent liabilities of the parent entity
Refer to note 29 - Coantingent liabiities

{d) Contractual commitments by the parent entity
Rafer to note 30 - Commitments

B0
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Other disclosure matters (continued)
35. Auditor's remuneration

During the year the following lees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditar of the parent
entity, its related practices and non-relsted audit firms:

Consolidated Conaclidated

2017 2016
5 E

PricawatarhouseCoopers - Australian firm

Audit or review of the financial reports 562,057 570,000
Othar audit-related work 158,035 207,791
Other assurance services 329,203 312,361
Total audit and other assurance services 1,049,296 1,090,152
Taxation 15,337 37,600
Advisory Services - 16,248
Tatal remuneration 1,074,633 1,144,000

Related practices of PricewsterhouseCaopers-Australian firm
[including overseas PricawaterhousaCoopars firma)
Other assurance servioes 105,199 112,001

36. Deed of cross guarantee

Toyota Finance Ausiralia Limited and TFA (Whalesale) Piy Limited are parties to o deed of cross Euaranies
under which each company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering inta the deed, the wholly-owned
entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and a directors” report under
ASIC Instrument 2016/ TES issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

The above companies represent a “Closed Group” for the purposes of the Legislative Instrument, and as thare
are no other parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Toyota Finance Australia Limited,
they also represent the “Extended Closed Group”.

The consalidated finpncial statemaents cover the entities which are porties to the deed of eross guarantee,
Consequently, the consolidated financial statements reflect the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated balance sheet, comprising the company and the controlled entities which are a party
to the Deed, after eliminating all transactions between the parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 31
March 2017,

61
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In the directors’ opinlon:

{a] the financial statements and notes se1 out on pages & 1o 51 are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

Fil complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Reguiations 2001 and other mondatory
professional reporting requirements, and

(i} ghving a true and falr view of the consofidated entity’s finonciol pasition as at 31 March 2017 and
of its performance for the year ended on thot dote; and

b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay Its debts 2s and when they
become due and payable; and

{c}  at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the
Extended Closed Group Identified in note 36 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which
they are, oF may become, subjact by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee described in note 36.

Mote 2(a) confirms that the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors

For and on behalf of the Beard

TN~
/.’ L. &, Chandler

Diroctor

XA % o
Y. Toora \
Director
Sydnay
01 lune 2017
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the company), which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a
summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors declaration for Toyota Finance Australia
Limited (the consolidated entity). The consolidated entity comprises the company and the entities it controlled at year's end or

from time to time during the financial year.

Directors responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of

Financial Satements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to
audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia report.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the consolidated entity’ s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.
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Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion:

€) the financia report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

() giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 31 March 2016 and of its

performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

(b) the financial report and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 30 May 2016
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Toyota Finance Australia Limited

Our opinion
In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (together the
Group) isin accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(8 giving atrue and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 31 March 2017 and of its financial performance for the
year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The financial report comprises:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies

the directors declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsihilities for the audit of the financial report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

I ndependence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor’ s report
comprises the directors' report included in the annual financial report, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’
s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility isto read the other information identified above and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in thisregard.

Responsihilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives atrue and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia report, the directors are responsible for ng the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial report as awhole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financia report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report islocated at the Auditing and Assurance

Standards Board website at:  http://www.auash.gov.au/auditors files/ar7.pdf. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Joe Sheeran Sydney
Partner 1 June 2017
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